
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Licensing Regulatory Committee 

on Tuesday, 9 September 2014, at 2.00 pm 

in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, 
Kendal 

 

Committee Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

James Airey 

Nick Cotton 

Sheila Eccles 

David Evans 

Clare Feeney-Johnson (Chairman) 

Alvin Finch 

Gill Gardner 

Tom Harvey 

John Holmes 

Helen Irving 

Vivienne Rees 

Matt Severn 

Evelyn Westwood (Vice-Chairman) 

Mark Wilson 

 

 
 
 
Friday, 29 August 2014 
 
Debbie Storr, Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Paul Rogers 

Telephone: 01539 793497 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  TERMS OF REFERENCE   

 To note the Terms of Reference for the Licensing Regulatory Committee 
as set out in Part 3 (pages 37 to 40) of the Council’s Constitution. 

 

3  MINUTES  5 - 16 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meetings of the Committee held on 21 January and 10 June 2014 (copies  
attached). 

 

4  MINUTES OF LICENSING REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEES  17 - 32 

 To receive the minutes of the meetings of Licensing Regulatory Sub-
Committees held on 21 January, 5 March, 1 April, 23 June, 21 July and 
19 August 2014 (copies attached) and for the Chairmen of the 
appropriate Sub-Committees to sign, as correct records. 

 

5  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on 
this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests 
or other registrable interests which have not already been declared in the 
Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a 
disclosable pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as 
well as any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration 
of interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she 
is advised to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance 
of the meeting. 

 

6  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

7  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make 
representations or present a deputation or petition at this meeting should 
apply to do so before the commencement of the meeting.  Information on 
how to make the application can be obtained by viewing the Council’s 

 



Website www.southlakeland.gov.uk or by contacting the Democratic and 
Electoral Services Manager on 01539 717440. 
 
(1) Questions and Representations 
 
 To receive any questions or representations which have been 

received from members of the public. 
 
(2) Deputations and Petitions 
 
 To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received 

from members of the public. 

8  POLICY TO LICENCE HORSE DRAWN HACKNEY CARRIAGES AND 
DRIVERS - LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) 
ACT 1976  

33 - 44 

 To consider the adoption of a policy to grant licences to horse drawn 
hackney carriage proprietors and drivers and conditions that shall apply 
to such horse drawn carriages. 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph 
number) 

There are no items in this part of the Agenda. 

 

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



5 
21.01.2014 Licensing Regulatory Committee 
 

 

LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Committee 
held in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, on 
Tuesday, 21 January 2014, at 2.00 pm. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 Sheila Eccles (Chairman) 
Evelyn Westwood (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Rob Boden 

Brian Cooper 
Nick Cotton 
David Evans 

 

Clare Feeney-Johnson 
Gill Gardner 
Tom Harvey 
John Holmes 

 

Helen Irving 
Vivienne Rees 
Mark Wilson 

 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors James Airey and 
Jo Stephenson. 
 

Officers 
 

Hardeep Burnley Principal Food, Licensing and Safety Officer 

Nicola Hartley Solicitor 

Tony Houlihan Licensing and Enforcement Officer 

Martin Keyes Financial Services Officer 

Paul Rogers Assistant Democratic Services Officer 

Karen Partington Licensing Officer 

 
LR/9 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENT  

 
The Chairman referred to recent articles in the local Press which contained 
quotes by some Councillors regarding hackney carriage and private hire 
matters. She asked Members to note that the comments made in the Press did 
not represent the views of the Committee. Also, that those Members had 
indicated to her that their comments had been misquoted by the Press. 
 

LR/10 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the 
minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 10 September 2013. 
 

LR/11 MINUTES OF LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES  
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee 
held on 23 October 2013 be received and the Chairman of the Sub-Committee 
be authorised to sign, as a correct record. 
 

Page 5

Item No.3



6 
21.01.2014 Licensing Regulatory Committee 
 

 

LR/12 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations were made. 
 

LR/13 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there were no excluded items on the 
Agenda. 
 

LR/14 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
Councillor Andrew Gardiner addressed the Committee as Shadow Portfolio 
Holder for Town Centres and Small Business with regard to taxis. As well as 
referring to the investment made by taxi drivers and small businesses to the 
local economy, he emphasised that taxis support and provide a service to local 
people and the tourist trade. He was of the view that taxi drivers were treated as 
second class business people. He drew the Committee’s attention to the lack of 
taxi rank spaces in Kendal which resulted in many taxis having to leave the 
town until such time as they could find a space at a rank. As a consequence, 
those taxi drivers were losing trade. He stated that the feeder Rank outside the 
shop ‘Fat Face’ in Kendal had been withdrawn and was now available for 
disabled parking.  He suggested to Members that with the number of events 
held in the Town, there was a need for more reserved taxi ranks. He asked that 
in the near future, the Committee consider the problem of lack of taxi ranks in 
the Town.  
 
Councillor Gardiner also suggested that Members who had been misquoted in 
the local Press recently regarding taxi matters, should ensure that the Press 
reprint their quotations accurately. 
 

LR/15 REVIEW OF LICENSING FEES AND CHARGES 2014/15  
 
The Principal Food, Licensing and Safety Officer presented a report which 
proposed that there will be an increase in licensing fees during 2014/15 for 
hackney carriage and private hire licences and that the fees will be reviewed 
again for financial years 2015/16, to ensure the fees set meet the costs of 
operating the service. She informed Members that there had been a reduction 
in licences issued due to the economical downturn but that the economy was 
now picking up and, hopefully, the number of licenses issued would begin to 
rise which would subsequently, help the financial figures. 
 
RESOLVED - That  
 
(1) the report be noted; and 
 
(2) the recommended fees as set out in Appendices 1 and 2 to these 
minutes be adopted for the financial year 2014/15. 
 

Page 6



7 
21.01.2014 Licensing Regulatory Committee 
 

 

LR/16 2014/15 BUDGET  
 
The Financial Services Officer presented a report which requested 
consideration of the latest draft budgets for the Licensing service for 2014/15. 
 
The latest draft Revenue Budgets for the Licensing and Licensing Regulatory 
Committees for 2014/15 would form part of the overall Revenue Budget 
proposal to be presented to Council for approval on 25 February 2014. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be received and the latest draft estimates be 
noted. 
 

LR/17 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976 
PROPOSED VARIATION OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES  
 
The Licensing Officer presented a report which requested consideration of 
proposals to determine whether to vary the maximum fares that may be 
charged by hackney carriage proprietors during the period 2014 to 2015, 
following consultation and proposals from the hackney carriage trade. The 
Licensing Officer referred to the Proposals 2 and 3 in the report and 
emphasised that should either proposal be agreed by Committee, it was not a 
legal requirement for hackney carriage proprietors to increase their fares to the 
new maximum charges. 
 
RESOLVED – That the following be approved:- 
 
(1) the modification of the maximum fares that may be charged by hackney 
carriage proprietors detailed in the report as Proposal 2. 
 
(2) the amendment to the Tariffs regarding changes to the Bank Holiday 
Rate detailed in the report as Option A. 
 
(3) the introduction of fares for non-motorised hackney carriages detailed in 
the report as Option C. 
 
 
The meeting ended at 3.00 pm 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1: Proposed fees  

Licence  

Taxis  £ 

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver (1 year licence)  62.00 

Issue of replacement Drivers Badge  20.00 

Driver Intelligence Systems Licence Check (Every 3 years)  5.75 

CRB Application  44.00 

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Vehicle (Over Eight Years Old)  
- 4 months  

70.00 

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Vehicle (Over Three Years Old) 
- 6 months   

103.00 

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Vehicle (Up to Three Years 
Old)  

- 12 months  

176.00 

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Vehicle Transfer 95.00 

Private Hire Operators (Yearly Licence) 106.00 

Transfer of Vehicle Ownership 52.00 

Door Plate 11.00 

Exterior door sign 10.00 (each) 

Interior door sign 10.00 

Bracket (Optional)  13.00 

Miscellaneous Licences 

Type of licence  £ 

Small Lotteries Registration Fee (Fixed by Statute) 42.00 

Renewal  22.00 

Animal   

Animal Boarding  105.00 

Home boarding of animals 72.00 

Dangerous and Wild animals (plus Vets fees) 118.00 

Dog Breeding  95.00 

Pet Shops 83.00 

Riding Establishments (plus Vets fees)  181.00 

Zoo Licence (plus Vets fees)  360.00 

Transfer of Zoo Licence  53.00 

Informal zoo inspection  113.00 

Miscellaneous  

Skin Piercing and miscellaneous (Premises) Acupuncture, Tattooing and 
Electrolysis Licence  

118.00 

Sex Establishments  5386.00 

Street Trading – 12 months  247.00 

Street Trading – per week  56.00 

Scrap Metal Collectors Licence  150.00 

Scrap Metal Collectors renewal  150.00 

Scrap Metal Collectors – Variation licence  70.00 

Scrap Metal Site Licence  300.00 

Scrap Metal Site renewal  300.00 

Scrap Metal Site – Variation licence  70.00 

Late administrative charge (where applicable)  26.00 

 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 

Licensing Act 2003  

Premises and Club Certificates  

Premises and club application – each premises that is licensable will be allocated to 

a fee band according to the non-domestic rateable value.  Evidence of premises 

band will be required.  

 

Rateable 
Value bands  

A (No 
rateable 
value - 
£4,300) 

B (£4,301 - 
£33,000) 

C (£33.001 
- £87,000) 

D (£87,001 - 
£125,000) 

E (£125,000 
– and 
above)  

New 
Application 
and Variation 
Fee  

£100 £190 £315 £450 £635 

 

Each band attracts a different level of annual fee – payable one year after the grant 

of a license.  

 

Rateable Value 
Bands  

A B C D E  

Annual Charge  £70 £180 £295 £320 £350 

 

A multiplier applied to premises in bands D and E where they are exclusively or 

primarily in the business of selling alcohol.  

 

Band D (X2)  E (X3)  

Application Fee  £900 £1905 

Annual charge  £640 £1050 

 

Exceptionally Large Events – An additional premises fee for exceptionally large 

events is payable.  

 

Number in attendance at any one time  Additional fee (£) 

5,000 to 9,999 1,000 

10,000 to 14,999 2,000 

15,000 to 19,999 4,000 

20,000 to 29,999 8,000 

30,000 to 39,999 16,000 

40,000 to 49,999 24,000 

50,000 to 59,999 32,000 

60,000 to 69,999 40,000 

70,000 to 79,999 48,000 

80,000 to 89,999 56,000 

90,000 and over  64,000 

 

Page 11



Personal licenses, Temporary Event Notices and Other Fees  

 

Licence type  Fee (£)  

Application for a grant or renewal of personal licence  37 

Temporary Event Notice  21 

Theft, loss, etc. of premises license or summary  10.50 

Application for a provisional statement where premises is being 
built, etc.  

315.00 

Notification of change of name or address 10.50 

Application to vary license to specify individual as premises 
supervisor  

23 

Application for transfer of premises license  23 

Interim authority notice following death etc. of license holder  23 

Theft, loss etc. of certificate or summary  10.50 

Notification of change of name or alteration of rule of club 10.50 

Change of relevant registered address of club  10.50 

Theft, loss etc. of Temporary Event Notice  10.50 

Theft, loss etc. of personal licence  10.50 

Duty to notify change of name or address  10.50 

Right of freeholder etc. to be notified of licensing matters  21 

 

Exemptions from payment of Premises Licence Fee  

 

In respect of applications covering the provision of regulated entertainment only (i.e. 

excluding the sale of alcohol), no fees shall be payable in respect of the following:  

 

(a) In a case of an application by a proprietor of an educational institution (school 

or college*), in respect of premises that are or form part of the educational 

institution –  

(i) The provision of regulated entertainment on the premises is carried by 

on by the educational institution for and on behalf of the purpose of the 

educational institution; or  

(b) That the application is in respect of premises that are or form part of a church 

hall, chapel hall or other similar building or village hall, parish hall or 

community hall or other similar building.  

 

“College” means a collage or similar institution principally concerned with the provision of full time 

education suitable to the requirements of persons over compulsory school age that have not attained 

the age of 19.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12



Gambling Act 2005 Premises licence fees (£)  

 

Type of 
premises  

Conversion 
Fast – 
Track 

Conversion 
Non Fast – 
track  

Non 
conversion 
provisional 
statement 
premises  

Non – 
conversion 
Application 
all other 
premises  

First 
annual  

Seasonal 
first 
annual  

Variation 
application  

Provisional 
statement 
application  

Transfer  Re-
instatement  

Regional 
Casino 

  8,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 7,500 15,000 6,500 6,500 

Large casino   5,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 5,000 10,000 2,150 2,150 

Small casino   3,000 8,000 5,000 5,000 4,000 8,000 1,800 1,800 

Converted 
casino 

300 2,000   3,000 3,000 2,000  1,350 1,350 

Bingo  300 1,250 1,000 2,500 800 800 pro- 
rata 
Min 300 

1,250 2,500 500 500 

Adult gaming 
centre  

300 800 600 1,600 700 700 pro-
rata 
Min 275 

800 1,600 400 400 

Betting (track)  300 1,250 950 2,500 500 500 pro-
rata  
Min 200 

1,250 2,500 950 950 

Family 
entertainment 
Centre  

300 800 600 1,600 400 400 pro-
rata 
Min 150 

800 1,600 300 300 

Betting (Other)  300 900 600 1,800 600 600 pro-
rata 
Min 225 

900 1,800 300 300 

All premises:  

Fee for copy of licence £15  

Fee to accompany notification of change of circumstances £30  

P
age 13



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
10.06.2014 Licensing Regulatory Committee 
 

 

LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Committee 
held in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, on 
Tuesday, 10 June 2014, at 6.58 pm. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
  

 
Nick Cotton 
David Evans 

Clare Feeney-Johnson 
Alvin Finch 

 

Gill Gardner 
Tom Harvey 
John Holmes 
Matt Severn 

 

Jo Stephenson 
Janet Willis 
Mark Wilson 

 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors James Airey, 
Brian Cooper, Vivienne Rees and Evelyn Westwood. 
 

Officers 
 

Debbie Storr Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 

Chris Woods Democratic and Electoral Services Manager 

  

 
LR/1 CHAIRMAN  

 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Clare Feeney-Johnson be elected Chairman of 
the Committee for the ensuing year. 
 

LR/2 VICE-CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Evelyn Westwood be re-appointed Vice-
Chairman for the ensuing year. 
 

LR/3 LICENSING REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEE  
 
RESOLVED – That Councillors Tom Harvey, John Holmes, Gill Gardner and  
Clare Feeney-Johnson (substitute) be nominated to consider an application for 
a Hackney Carriage Driver’s Licence on Monday 23, June 2014, at 2.00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 7.01 pm 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



13 
21.01.2014 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee 
 

 

LICENSING REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Sub-
Committee held in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, 
on Tuesday, 21 January 2014, at 10.00 a.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

Clare Feeney-Johnson 
 

Helen Irving 
 

Evelyn Westwood 
 

Officers 
 

Hardeep Burnley Principal Food, Licensing and Safety Officer 

John Greenbank Democratic Services and Scrutiny Assistant 

Nicola Hartley Solicitor 

Tony Houlihan Licensing and Enforcement Officer 

Karen Partington Licensing Officer 

 
LRS/20 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  

 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Evelyn Westwood be elected Chairman for the 
meeting. 
 

LRS/21 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP  
 
There had been no change in the membership of the Sub-Committee, and 
therefore no reconstitution of membership was necessary. 
 

LRS/22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were made. 
 

LRS/23 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there were no excluded items on the Agenda. 
 

LRS/24 INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman introduced the Members of the Sub-Committee and those in 
attendance, and read out the procedure for the meeting to be used in 
consideration of the application. 
 

Page 17

Item No.4



14 
21.01.2014 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee 
 

 

LRS/25 APPLICATION TO RENEW A HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER'S LICENCE  
 
The Licensing Officer presented a report that asked Members to consider whether 
to renew the applicant’s Hackney Carriage Driver’s Licence in light of certain 
convictions recorded against her. 
 
Mrs Clare Davey had applied to renew her Hackney Carriage Driver’s Licence 
which had been due to expire on 17 January 2014. During the application process 
it had been revealed that her Driving Licence had been endorsed with a total of 14 
penalty points as a result of four separate speeding instances dating back to 18 
October 2009. The Sub-Committee was also informed that the most recent 
conviction had occurred while she had been transporting a fare paying passenger. 
 
The Chairman invited the applicant and Members of the Sub-Committee to put 
questions to the Licensing Officer. 
 
Mrs Davey spoke to the Sub-Committee explaining that the most recent 
endorsements on her licence had been as the result of a Magistrate Court decision 
and had included a £380 fine. She also informed Members that she had attended 
a speed awareness course after the 20 August 2012 endorsements. The Sub-
Committee was informed that she was self-employed. 
 
The Chairman then invited the Licensing Officer and Members of the Sub-
Committee to put questions to the applicant. 
 
The applicant was then invited to make a closing submission. 
 
Note – The Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting to exclude 
the press and public, in making its decision and retired in accordance with 
Resolution 14 (2) of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearing) Regulations 2005 (as 
amended) in order to give further consideration to the application. 
 
The Sub-Committee withdrew to consider the circumstances put forward and 
reconvened to deliver its decision. 
 
Having heard the representations made, the Sub-Committee considered the 
circumstances put forward and 
 
RESOLVED – That the application be refused. 
 
Reasons for Decision:- 
 
(1) The Council has a duty to protect the public, and to be satisfied that the 
applicant is a fit and proper person to drive a hackney carriage or a private hire 
vehicle. 
 
(2) Having taken into account all the information available to it, the Sub-
Committee decided that Mrs Davey’s application shall be refused having regard to 
the Council’s policy and taking into account the individual circumstances of the 
case. Mrs Clare Yvonne Davey has made an application to renew her hackney 

Page 18



15 
21.01.2014 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee 
 

 

carriage driver’s licence which expires on 17 January 2014. The application 
process has revealed that the applicant has been convicted of the following 
offences as a result of which her driving licence has been endorsed with penalty 
points:- 
 

18.10.2009 Speeding SP30 (Fixed penalty) D/Licence endorsed 3 points 

11.06.2012 Speeding SP30 (Fixed penalty) D/Licence endorsed 3 points 

30.08.2012 Speeding SP30 (Fixed penalty) D/Licence endorsed 3 points 

16.05.2013 Speeding SP30 (Fixed penalty) D/Licence endorsed 5 points - 
fined £380 

 
(3) The Council has adopted guidance concerning the relevance of criminal 
convictions and Police Cautions for use in determining applications for Hackney 
Carriage Driver’ Licences. The guidance states that all convictions will be 
considered on merit and the relevance of criminal convictions will be weighed 
against the need to protect the public. 
 
(4) Convictions relating to minor driving offences committed when the applicant 
was driving a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire vehicle will be considered in a 
more serious light. 
 
(5) The Sub-Committee noted that they have a duty of care to the travelling 
public who use private hire and hackney carriage vehicles in the District and could 
find no evidence to justify departing from the Policy in this case. The Speed 
Awareness Course was Mrs Davey’s opportunity to reflect and be more aware of 
her speed. However after attending this course, Mrs Davey then went on to accrue 
a further 5 points and whilst carrying a fare paying passenger. The Sub-Committee 
considered that 44-45 miles per hour in an urban area is very high and dangerous. 
 
The applicant was informed of her right to appeal to the Magistrates Court within 
21 days following notification of the Licensing Sub-Committee’s decision. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 10.46 a.m. 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



17 
05.03.2014 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee 
 

 

LICENSING REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Sub-
Committee held in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, 
on Wednesday, 5 March 2014, at 2.00 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors  
 
 

Rob Boden 
 

John Holmes 
 

Evelyn Westwood 
 

 

Officers 
 

Hardeep Burnley Principal Food, Licensing and Safety Officer 

John Greenbank Democratic Services and Scrutiny Assistant 

Nicola Hartley Solicitor 

Tony Houlihan Licensing and Enforcement Officer 

Karen Partington Licensing Officer 

  

 
LRS/26 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  

 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Evelyn Westwood be elected Chairman for the 
meeting. 
 

LRS/27 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP  
 
There had been no change in membership of the Sub-Committee, and therefore 
no reconstitution of membership was necessary. 
 

LRS/28 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declaration of interest were made. 
 

LRS/29 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That the item in Part II of the Agenda be dealt with following 
exclusion of the press and public. 
 

LRS/30 INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman introduced the Members of the Sub-Committee and those in 
attendance, and read out the procedure for the meeting to be used in 
consideration of the application. 
 

Page 21



18 
05.03.2014 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee 
 

 

LRS/31 PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED – That, under Section 100 (A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of 
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12 A of the Act as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to information) (Variation) Order 2006 by virtue of the 
Paragraph indicated. 
 

LRS/32 APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVERS' 
LICENCE 
 
- Paragraph 1, 2 - Information relating to any individual.  
- Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.  
 
The Licensing Officer presented a report that asked Members to consider whether 
to grant an application for a Hackney Carriage Driver’s Licence in light of certain 
convictions recorded against the applicant. 
 
The applicant put their case to the Sub-Committee informing Member’s that they 
had passed all the necessary tests to hold a Hackney Carriage Driver’s Licence. 
 
The Sub-Committee was also informed that a substantial period of time had 
elapsed since the applicant’s last conviction. 
 
The applicant’s employer also spoke to the Sub-Committee 
 
Note – The Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting in 
making its decision and retired in accordance with Resolution 14 (2) of the 
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearing) Regulations 2005 (as amended) in order to give 
further consideration to the application. 
 
The Sub-Committee withdrew to consider the circumstances put forward and 
reconvened to deliver its decision. 
 
Having heard the representations made, the Sub-Committee considered the 
circumstances put forward and  
 
RESOLVED – That  
 
(1) the applicant be considered a fit and proper person to hold a Hackney Carriage 
Drivers Licence and that they be granted a Hackney Carriage Drivers Licence for a 
twelve month period; and 
 
(2) it be noted that the last conviction recorded against the applicant was in 1997, 
and, given the length of time that has elapsed, the applicant be considered a fit 
and proper person to hold a Hackney Carriage Drivers Licence. 
 
 
The meeting ended at 2.55 pm 

Page 22



19 
01.04.2014 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee 
 

 

LICENSING REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Sub-
Committee held in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, 
on Tuesday, 1 April 2014, at 10.00 am. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 
 
 
 

Sheila Eccles 
 

Clare Feeney-Johnson 
 

John Holmes 
 

 

Officers 
 

John Greenbank Democratic Services and Scrutiny Assistant 

Nicola Hartley Solicitor 

Tony Houlihan Licensing and Enforcement Officer 

 
LRS/33 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  

 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Shelia Eccles be elected Chairman for the meeting. 
 

LRS/34 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP  
 
There had been no changes in the membership of the Sub-Committee, and 
therefore no reconstitution of membership was necessary. 
 

LRS/35 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were made. 
 

LRS/36 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there were no excluded items on the Agenda. 
 

LRS/37 INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman introduced the Members of the Sub-Committee and those in 
attendance, and read out the procedure for the meeting to be used in 
consideration of the application. 
 

Page 23



20 
01.04.2014 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee 
 

 

LRS/38 HACKNEY CARRIAGE LICENCE - APPLICATION TO RENEW OTHER THAN 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH CONDITIONS  
 
The Licensing Officer presented a report that asked Members to consider whether 
to grant, with or without conditions, or refuse the application to renew a hackney 
carriage vehicle licence other than in accordance with current policy. 
 
The vehicle had been purchased in 2004 and had been licensed with the Authority 
for ten years. As such the vehicle could no longer be licensed as a hackney 
carriage as it did not meet the ten year age policy as set by the Council.  
 
However it was noted that all cases should be considered on their individual 
merits. 
 
The vehicle had been inspected by an independent and qualified engineer and 
separately by a Licensing Officer and both had found it to be in a good condition. 
 
The applicant sought for the ten year policy regarding the vehicle’s age to be 
waived and to have their Hackney Carriage Licence extended by one year until 23 
April 2015, at which point they intended to retire. If the request was denied the 
applicant stated that they would find it difficult to finance another vehicle. 
 
The Chairman then invited Members of the Sub-Committee to put questions to the 
applicant. 
 
The applicant was then invited to make a closing submission. 
 
Note – The Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting to exclude 
the press and public, in making its decision, on the basis that legal advice would 
be received on possible legal proceedings arising from the decision being exempt 
information under Paragraph 12 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972. 
 

The Sub-Committee withdrew to consider the circumstances put forward and 
reconvened to deliver its decision. 
 
Having heard the representations made, the Sub-Committee considered the 
circumstances put forward and  
 

RESOLVED – That the application be granted. 
 

Reason for Decision:- 
 

(1) That the vehicle driven by the applicant is fit for purpose and that they be 
granted a renewal of their Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence for a further 12 
months, expiring no later than 23 April 2015 and shall not be renewed after that 
date. 
 

Page 24



21 
01.04.2014 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee 
 

 

(2) The Licensing Regulatory Sub Committee considered the policy regarding age 
limits of vehicles licensed as hackney carriages, the four monthly MOT testing and 
the fact that the vehicle had been inspected by an independent, qualified engineer 
on 10 March 2014 who did not find any faults with the vehicle and said that it was 
“in good condition for its age” and that of fifty-five categories, thirty-one were 
scored as excellent. The Sub-Committee noted that the vehicle had only failed an 
MOT test on two occasions out of seventeen inspections and that both failures 
were on minor issues. The Sub-Committee were satisfied that despite its age the 
vehicle, it was in exceptional working order. 
 
(3) The Sub-Committee considered the individual circumstances of this case and 
considered that it merited departing from the ten year limit age policy.  
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 10.35 am 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
23.06.2014 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee 
 

 

LICENSING REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Sub-
Committee held in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, 
on Monday, 23 June 2014, at 2.00 pm. 
 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 
Gill Gardner 

 
Tom Harvey 

 
John Holmes 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors   
 

Officers 
 

 Hardeep Burnley Principal Food, Licensing and Safety Officer 

John Greenbank Democratic Services and Scrutiny Assistant 

Nicola Hartley Senior Solicitor 

Karen Partington Licensing Officer 

 
LRS/1 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  

 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Tom Harvey be elected Chairman for the meeting. 
 

LRS/2 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP  
 
There had been no changes in the membership of the Sub-Committee, and 
therefore no reconstitution of membership was necessary. 
 

LRS/3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were made. 
 

LRS/4 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there were no excluded items on the Agenda. 
 

LRS/5 INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman introduced the Members of the Sub-Committee and those in 
attendance, and read out the procedure for the meeting to be used in 
consideration of the application. 
 

Page 27



2 
23.06.2014 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee 
 

 

LRS/6 HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER RENEWAL  
 
The Licensing Officer presented a report that asked Members to consider whether 
to grant or refuse the application to renew a Hackney Carriage Drivers licence 
having regard to the non disclosure of a police caution. 
 
Mr Denis Murphy had applied for a renewal of his Hackney Carriage Drivers 
licence. During the processing of the application it was revealed that an offence for 
battery had not been disclosed by the applicant. 
 
The Chairman invited the applicant and Members of the Sub-Committee to put 
questions to the Licensing Officer. 
 
Mr Murphy spoke to the Sub-Committee explaining the circumstances that led to 
him receiving a police caution. He expressed regret for his behaviour and had fully 
admitted his actions when questioned by the police. The applicant also stated that 
he enjoyed his work as a taxi driver and that he was a “good citizen”. 
 
The Chairman invited Members of the Sub-Committee to put questions to the 
applicant. 
 
The applicant was then invited to make closing submissions. 
 
Mr Andrew Britten, owner of Blue Star Taxis, spoke on behalf of the applicant. Mr 
Britten expressed the view that Mr Murphy was a good and reliable worker. 
 
The Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting to exclude the 
press and public, in making its decision, on the basis that legal advice would be 
received on possible legal proceedings arising from the decision being exempt 
information under Paragraph 12 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972. 
 
The Sub-Committee withdrew to consider the circumstances put forward and 
reconvened to deliver its decision. 
 
Having heard the representations made and the individual facts of the case, the 
Sub-Committee considered the circumstances put forward and were of the view 
that such facts merited departing from guidance concerning the relevance of 
criminal convictions and police cautions in this particular case and 
 
RESOLVED – That the applicant be considered a fit and proper person to hold a 
Hackney Carriage Drivers Licence and that he be granted a Hackney Carriage 
Drivers Licence for a twelve month period. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 2.30 pm 

Page 28



3 
21.07.2014 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee 
 

 

LICENSING REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Sub-
Committee held in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, 
on Monday, 21 July 2014, at 10.00 am. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

Tom Harvey 
 

John Holmes 
 

Vivienne Rees 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors   
 

Officers 
 

 John Greenbank Democratic Services and Scrutiny Assistant 

Nicola Hartley Senior Solicitor 

Tony Houlihan Licensing and Enforcement Officer 

 
LRS/7 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  

 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Tom Harvey be elected Chairman for the meeting. 
 

LRS/8 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP  
 
There had been no changes in the membership of the Sub-Committee, and 
therefore no reconstitution of membership was necessary. 
 

LRS/9 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were made. 
 

LRS/10 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED -  That it be noted that there were no excluded items on the Agenda. 
 

LRS/11 INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman introduced the Members of the Sub-Committee and those in 
attendance, and read out the procedure for the meeting to be used in 
consideration of the application. 
 

LRS/12 GRANT (RENEWAL) OF A HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVERS LICENCE 
APPLICATION  
 
The Licensing Officer presented a report that asked Members to consider whether 
to grant or refuse the application to renew a Hackney Carriage Drivers licence 
having regard to the non disclosure of a police caution. 
  

Page 29



4 
21.07.2014 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee 
 

 

Mr Jason Beattie had applied for a renewal of his Hackney Carriage Drivers 
licence. During the processing of the application it was revealed that a Police 
Caution for the possession of a controlled substance had not been disclosed by 
the applicant. 
  
The Chairman invited the applicant and Members of the Sub-Committee to put 
questions to the Licensing Officer. 
 
Mr Beattie spoke to the Sub-Committee explaining the circumstances that led to 
him receiving a Police Caution. The applicant stated he had accepted the 
responsibility for a controlled substance that had been found at his home and 
subsequently been arrested and bailed. He also stated that he had not realised the 
implications or formal nature of receiving a Police Caution and therefore had failed 
to disclose the offence on his Hackney carriage Driver’s Licence Renewal 
Application. 
 
The Chairman invited Members of the Sub-Committee to put questions to the 
applicant. 
 
The applicant was then invited to make closing submissions. 
 
The applicants employer, Mr Andrew Britten, spoke on his behalf. He expressed 
the view that Mr Beattie was a good and trustworthy worker. 
 
Mr Beattie’s partner also spoke to the Sub-Committee.  
 
The Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting to exclude the 
press and public, in making its decision, on the basis that legal advice would be 
received on possible legal proceedings arising from the decision being exempt 
information under Paragraph 12 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972 and also that, under Section 100 (A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of 
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12 A of the Act as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to information) (Variation) Order 2006 by virtue of the 
Paragraph indicated. 
  
The Sub-Committee withdrew to consider the circumstances put forward and 
reconvened to deliver its decision. 
 
Having heard the facts of the case, and having heard the representations made by 
Mr Beattie, the Sub-Committee considered the circumstances put forward and 
 
RESOLVED - that Mr Beattie be considered a fit and proper person and that Mr 
Beattie should be granted a renewal of his hackney carriage drivers licence for a 
further 12 months. 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 10.25 am 

Page 30



5 
19.08.2014 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee 
 

 

LICENSING REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Sub-
Committee held in the Georgian Room, Kendal Town Hall, on Tuesday, 19 August 
2014, at 10.00 am. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

Sheila Eccles 
 

Clare Feeney-Johnson 
 

Helen Irving 
 

Officers 
 

Nicola Hartley Senior Solicitor 

Tony Houlihan Licensing and Enforcement Officer 

Paul Rogers Assistant Democratic Services Officer 

 
LRS/13 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  

 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Sheila Eccles be elected Chairman for the meeting. 
 

LRS/14 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP  
 
There had been no change in membership of the Sub-Committee and, therefore, 
no reconstitution of membership was necessary. 
 

LRS/15 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were made. 
 

LRS/16 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That the item in Part II of the Agenda be dealt with following the 
exclusion of the press and public.  
 

LRS/17 INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman introduced the Members of the Sub-Committee and those in 
attendance and read out the procedure for the meeting to be used in consideration 
of the application. 
 

LRS/18 PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED - That, under Section 100 (A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of 
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12 A of the Act as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to information) (Variation) Order 2006 by virtue of the 
Paragraph indicated. 

Page 31



6 
19.08.2014 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee 
 

 

 
LRS/19 GRANT (RENEWAL) OF A HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVERS LICENCE 

APPLICATION 
 
- Paragraph 1 - Information relating to any individual.  
 
The Licensing officer presented a report that asked Members to consider whether 
to renew the applicant’s Hackney Carriage Drivers’ Licence in the light of certain 
convictions recorded against him.  
 
The applicant had applied to renew his hackney Carriage Driver’s Licence which 
had been due to expire on 19 August. It was noted that his Driving Licence had 
been endorsed with a total of 8 points, those points being as a result of the latest 
offence of failing to report an accident. 
 
The applicant addressed the Sub-Committee explaining the circumstances of the 
latest conviction. He emphasised that he had endeavoured to telephone the Police 
on the number 101 on a number of occasions without success. 
 
The applicant’s employer addressed the Sub-Committee and informed Members 
that the applicant  was a very trustworthy person. 
 
The Sub-Committee withdrew to consider the circumstances put forward and  
reconvened to deliver its decision. 
 
Having heard the facts of the case, and the representations made by the applicant, 
it was 
 
RESOLVED – That the applicant be considered a fit and proper person and be 
granted a renewal of his Hackney Carriage Drivers’ Licence for a further 12 
months period. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 10.29 am 

Page 32



South Lakeland District Council 

Licensing Regulatory Committee 

9 September 2014 

POLICY TO LICENCE  

HORSE DRAWN HACKNEY CARRIAGES & DRIVERS 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976  

 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Sue Sanderson, Environment and People 

REPORT FROM: Simon Rowley – Assistant Director (Neighbourhood 
Services) 

REPORT AUTHOR: Tony Houlihan -  Licensing Officer 

WARDS: Not Applicable 

KEY DECISION NO: Not Applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 The Licensing Regulatory Committee are to consider this report and determine 

whether to adopt a policy to grant licences to horse drawn hackney carriage 
proprietors and drivers and conditions that shall apply to such horse drawn carriages. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

Members are requested to: 

(1) Adopt the Policy for the Licensing  of horse drawn hackney carriages 
and  horse drawn hackney carriage drivers as is set out in Appendix 
1 to this report; 
 

(2) Adopt conditions that will apply to horse drawn hackney carriage 
vehicles as is set out in Appendix 2 to this report; and 
 

(3) Delegate authority to the Director of People and Places in relation to 
the grant and renewal and suspension (including with immediate 
effect as appropriate where in the interest of public safety to do so) 
of horse drawn hackney carriages and  horse drawn hackney 
carriage drivers. 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 A hackney carriage is a vehicle constructed or adapted to seat fewer than eight 

passengers, not being a private hire vehicle or public service vehicle, and is provided 
for hire with the services of a driver for the purpose of carrying passengers. The 
definition of a hackney carriage is not limited to motor vehicles, it can include horse 
drawn carriages. 

Page 33

Item No.8



 
3.2  The Council has adopted terms and conditions regarding the type and specification of 

hackney carriages that may be licensed within South Lakeland. The terms and 
conditions are necessary to ensure that all vehicles used for hackney carriage 
purposes are mechanically sound, safe, comfortable and fit for purpose. The current 
terms and conditions apply to motor vehicles and a separate set of terms and 
conditions are applicable to ‘Pedicabs’. 

 
3.3 The Council does not currently have a policy or any terms and conditions that are 

applicable to licensing horse drawn hackney carriages and drivers. 

 
4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 The Licensing Authority has not issued a horse drawn hackney carriage licence or 
drivers’ licence for many years. There is no record of the last horse drawn hackney 
carriage licence to be issued. 

4.2 The use of a horse and carriage to provide a public transport facility cannot be 
licensed as a private hire vehicle, as this function is limited to motor vehicles. 

4.3 A horse and carriage may be licensed for use as an ‘omnibus’ under the Town Police 
Clauses Act 1889, but this would require the introduction of bye-laws to regulate the 
manner in which an omnibus shall be used. 

4.4     The Council’s Licensing Officer has made enquiries with Blackpool Council, being the 

nearest licensing authority with a large fleet of horse drawn hackney carriages.  

4.5 Having regard to Blackpool Council’s procedures the Licensing Officer has produced 

suggested application procedures for members’ consideration for both horse drawn 
hackney carriage licences and horse drawn hackney carriage driving licences. A 
suggested policy applicable to both horse drawn hackney carriage proprietors’ 
licences and horse drawn hackney carriage drivers’ licences is enclosed as Appendix 
1. Suggested conditions for horse drawn hackney carriages are enclosed as 
Appendix 2. 

4.6 In common with the existing drivers’ licensing system for Pedicabs, the possession of 

a driving licence for a horse drawn hackney carriage shall not enable the holder of 
such a licence to obtain a hackney carriage driving licence for any other type of 
carriage. 

4.7 It is proposed that the grant, renewal and suspension (including where appropriate 
with immediate effect) of horse drawn hackney carriages and  horse drawn hackney 
carriage drivers shall be delegated to officers as is currently the case with motorised  
hackney carriage  vehicles and their drivers.  Any applications for grant or renewal 
which are outside policy and all decisions to revoke or refuse to renew would be 
referred to Licensing Regulatory Sub- Committee as is currently the case with vehicle 
and driver licences for motorised hackney carriages 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 The committee may accept the proposed policy and terms and conditions, or reject 

them, or accept them with any amendments they consider to be necessary. 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

 Health and Well Being - The purpose of the hackney carriage and private hire  
            licensing system is to protect the safety and the welfare of the taxi travelling public. 

Page 34



7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 There are no financial or resource issues as hackney carriage licences are issued on 

a cost recovery basis.  

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 There are no issues in respect of human resources as hackney carriage licences are 

issued with existing resources. 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 Section 47 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 states in 
relation to the licensing of hackney carriages: 

(1) A district council may attach to the grant of a licence of a hackney carriage under 
the Act of 1847 such conditions as the district council may consider reasonably 
necessary.  

(2) Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing subsection, a district council 
may require any hackney carriage licensed by them under the Act of 1847 to be of 
such design or appearance or bear such distinguishing marks as shall clearly identify 
it as a hackney carriage.  

(3) Any person aggrieved by any conditions attached to such a licence may appeal to 
a magistrates’ court. 

7.3.2    Section 53 of the same Act states, in relation to drivers’ licences for hackney 
carriages and private hire vehicles: 

(1) (a) Every licence granted by a district council under the provisions of this Part 
of this Act to any person to drive a private hire vehicle shall remain in force for 
three years from the date of such licence or for such lesser period as the 
district council may specify in such licence. 

(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of the Public Health Act 1875 and the Town 
Police Clauses Act 1889, every licence granted by a district council under the 
provisions of the Act of 1847 to any person to drive a hackney carriage shall 
remain in force for three years from the date of such licence or for such lesser 
period as they may specify in such licence.  

(2)    Notwithstanding the provisions of the Act of 1847, a district council may 
demand and recover for the grant to any person of a licence to drive a 
hackney carriage, or a private hire vehicle, as the case may be, such a fee as 
they consider reasonable with a view to recovering the costs of issue and 
administration and may remit the whole or part of the fee in respect of a 
private hire vehicle in any case in which they think it appropriate to do so.  

(3)  The driver of any hackney carriage or of any private hire vehicle licensed by a 
district council shall at the request of any authorised officer of the council or of 
any constable produce for inspection his driver’s licence either forthwith or—  

(a)  in the case of a request by an authorised officer, at the principal offices 
of the council before the expiration of the period of five days beginning 
with the day following that on which the request is made;  

(b)  in the case of a request by a constable, before the expiration of the 
period aforesaid at any police station which is within the area of the 
council and is nominated by the driver when the request is made.  

Page 35



(4) If any person without reasonable excuse contravenes the provisions of this 
section, he shall be guilty of an offence. 

7.3.3 Section 59 of the same Act states, in relation to the qualifications for drivers of 
hackney carriages. 

(1)  Notwithstanding anything in the Act of 1847, a district council shall not grant a 
licence to drive a hackney carriage—  

(a)  Unless they are satisfied that the applicant is a fit and proper person to 
hold a driver’s licence; or  

(b) To any person who has not for at least twelve months been authorised 
to drive a motor car, or is not at the date of the application for a driver’s 
licence so authorised. 

(2)  Any applicant aggrieved by the refusal of a district council to grant a driver’s 
licence on the ground that he is not a fit and proper person to hold such licence 
may appeal to a magistrate’s court. 

 

7.4 Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 The overall impact assessment is positive as the business venture proposed by the 
applicant does encourage local entrepreneurship and is likely to support other 
businesses within the district allowing people to access and enjoy the Lake District.  

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 There are no equality or diversity issues associated with this application. 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Should there be no clear policy 
on this issue any licensing 
decisions will not be robust and 
will be subject to challenge.   

Future licensing decisions 
relating to these type of 
vehicles being overturned 
on appeal to the 
Magistrates 

Adoption of the policy as 
outlined in the report. 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – Tony Houlihan – Licensing Officer – Tel: 01539 793409 

E-mail: T.Houlihan@southlakeland.gov.uk  

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix 1. 
Proposed application procedures  for both hackney carriage and 
hackney carriage driving licences  

Appendix 2. 
Proposed Terms and Conditions for horse drawn  hackney 
carriages  

 

Page 36

mailto:t.houlihan@southlakeland.gov.uk


BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Name of Background 
Document 

Where it is available  

Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) 
Act 1976 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1976/57/part/II  

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

21/8/14 N/A 21/8/14 N/A N/A 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

N/A 09/09/14 N/A N/A N/A 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 

 

   

N/A N/A    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 37

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1976/57/part/II


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 

 

Horse Drawn Hackney Carriage Licensing 
 

The grant of a licence to a drive a horse drawn hackney carriage shall entitle the 
holder to drive a hackney carriage of the type specified on the licence (i.e. horse 
drawn carriage).  It shall not entitle the holder to drive any other type of hackney 
carriage or private hire vehicle.  

A licence to drive a horse drawn carriage as a hackney carriage will last for one year 
from the date of issue.  

A horse drawn hackney carriage proprietors’ licence will last for one year from the 
date of issue.  

 

Driver - Licensing - Grant 

The applicant for a horse drawn hackney carriage driving licence shall comply with 
the existing requirements for a hackney carriage driving licence, but with the 
following differences: 

1. The ‘local knowledge’ pass certificate is not required; 
2. DSA certificate TPH10 or WCA10 is not required; 
3. The applicant must produce evidence to the authority that they are competent 

to drive horses in harness.  Certification to British Driving Society (BDS) Level 
3 Road Driving Safety Qualification for Pairs and Singles is required 

 

Driver - Licensing - Renewal 

An application to renew a horse drawn hackney carriage driving licence shall comply 
with the existing requirements for a hackney carriage driving licence.   

 

Proprietors’ Vehicle Licensing – Grant and Renewal 

In ascertaining whether the vehicle is fit, the proprietor of a horse drawn hackney 
carriage must produce evidence of the following:  

(a) The roadworthiness of the carriage (via a certificate issued by an inspector 
approved by the Council)  

(b) The serviceability of the ancillary equipment (via a certificate issued by an 
inspector approved by the Council)  

(c) The fitness and appropriateness of the horse to be used (via a certificate 
issued by a Veterinary Surgeon approved by the Council) 

(d) Horse passport(s) for the horse(s) to be used  
(e) An insurance policy appropriate for public hire and covering third party liability 

both in respect of physical injury or death in respect of damage to personal 
belongings. A minimum sum of £5million is required.  

 

 

Page 39



Carriage specification  

The minimum requirements for a carriage are that it must: 

 Be drawn by one or more horses  

 Have two or four  wheels  
Have a compartment for the passengers to be carried in  

 Be capable of carrying not less than four and not more than six passengers  

 In the opinion of the Councils Appointed Inspector, is safe for the use as a 
hackney carriage vehicle on the road.  

 

Signage  

Every carriage must display:   

a. A licence plate to the rear of the vehicle; 
b. An identity badge inside the vehicle, and; 
c. A tariff of fares inside the vehicle. 

The licence plate, identity badger and tariff of fares shall be in the form that is 
prescribed from time to time by the Council. 

  

Conditions  

Conditions relating to horse drawn carriages can be found in Appendix B of this 
report  

 

Tariffs  

The tariff for a non-motorised hackney carriage shall be reviewed at the same time 
as the tariff is reviewed for a motorised hackney carriage.  

 

Page 40



APPENDIX 2 

 
Horse Drawn Hackney Carriage Conditions  
All horse drawn hackney carriage licences will be issued subject to the following 
conditions:  
 
Conditions Specific to Horse Drawn Vehicles:  
 
1 Horse drawn hackney carriages are exempted from the requirement; 

a. To have a taximeter and; 
b. To have a ‘roof light’. 

 
2 The licensed proprietor shall be responsible for the safe handling and proper care 

of the horses employed in the operation of the licensed vehicle.  
 

3 The licensed proprietor shall be responsible for ensuring the collection and 
satisfactory hygienic disposal of horse excrement, as soon as reasonably 
practicable after the horse excrement has been deposited.  

 
4 The proprietor shall notify the Licensing team in writing of any change in the 

physical condition of the horse. 
 

5 The licensed proprietor shall not use any animal that is in such a condition so as 
to expose any person to risk or injury.  

 
6 The licensed proprietor shall ensure that every part of the harness of the horse or 

horses is kept in order, so that the horse or horses are properly and securely 
attached to the carriage and under control.  

 
7 The licensed proprietor shall ensure that the horse/s harness and carriage are 

examined carefully at the start of each day’s work and assure themselves that 
everything is in good condition and in proper order.  

 
8 The licensed proprietor shall not cause or permit any horse harnessed or 

otherwise attached to his hackney carriage, to be fed in the street except with 
food contained in a proper bag other receptacle suspended for the head of such 
horse, or from the centre pole of the carriage, or with food from the hand of the 
person feeding the horse.  

 
9 No horse shall be harnessed to, or used in connection with the vehicle hereby 

licensed unless, within the preceding twelve months, an approved Royal College 
Veterinary Surgeon has examined the horse and issued a certificate of fitness.  
Horse passports and veterinary certificates for those horses to be used must be 
provided on application for a licence, and for any additional horses certificates 
shall be delivered to the Licensing Authority immediately.  
 

10 No horse shall be in harness for more than seven hours in any one-day and if in 
harness for seven consecutive hours, shall during that period have a break of not 
less than one hour and shall be fed and watered.  

 

Page 41



11 A horse in which in any one day is harnessed to, or used in connection with a 
licensed hackney carriage shall not be used at any time during that day for any 
other purpose.  

 
12 Veterinary papers relating to the horse in harness should be available for 

inspection on request by an authorised officer.  
 

13 The proprietor shall at all times comply with the requirements of Department of 
Transport’s Code of Practice for Horse Drawn Vehicles.  

 
14 No horse under six years of age or mare in foal or within three months of foaling 

shall be used for the purpose of a hackney carriage.   
 

Licences and Livery  
 
15 A horse drawn hackney carriage licence shall be valid for 12 months from the 

date of issue.  
 

16 The hackney carriage licence, licence plate and internal hackney disc shall be 
issue upon the grant of a licence.  

 
17 The licence plate must be securely fixed to the rear of the horse drawn carriage.  

It must be fixed in such a position that it is clearly visible to road users.  
 

18 The licence plate/disc shall remain the property of the Council. 
 

19 The licence plate shall be returned to the licensing authority  when the licence:  
i. Expires, or;  
ii. Is suspended, or; 
iii. Is revoked 

  
20 The licence plate must be returned to the licensing authority before a new licence 

plate is issued. 
  

21 An expired licence cannot be renewed.  An application for the grant of a new 
licence must be submitted.  

 
22 The internal hackney disc shall be displayed within the seated area of the 

carriage.  
 

23 Every lost, damaged or illegible licence plate or badge shall be reported to the 
Council immediately.  A duplicate licence plate or badge will be issued at the 
expense of the licence holder.  The vehicle shall not be used for hire until the 
licence plate or badge has been replaced.  

 
24 The licence holder shall not transfer or intend to transfer any interest in the 

licenced vehicle (hiring or leasing the vehicle).  If the proprietor does not wish to 
retain the vehicle licence they must immediately surrender and return the vehicle 
licence and the licence plates to the Council.  This condition shall not preclude 

Page 42



the transfer of any interest in the licenced vehicle as part of the transfer/sale of 
the business to a new owner.  

 
25 An application for renewal cannot be made after a licence has expired.  In this 

instance a full application must be made.  
 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	21-01-14 App.1
	21-01-14 App.2
	10-06-14  001-003

	4 MINUTES OF LICENSING REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEES
	05-03-14 026-032
	01-04-14 033-038
	23-06-14 001-006
	21-07-14 007-012
	19-08-14 005-006

	8 POLICY TO LICENCE HORSE DRAWN HACKNEY CARRIAGES AND DRIVERS - LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976
	APPENDIX 1 - Horse Drawn Hackney Carriage Policy
	APPENDIX 2 - Hackney Carriage Conditions


